
 
EXECUTIVE  COMMITTEE  AGENDA  

Friday, October 16, 2015 ‐ Spokane Red Lion, Willow Room at 10:00 AM 
(morning refreshments will be available at 9:30 a.m.) 

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Approval of Minutes – Executive Committee Meeting of June 12, 2015 ................................ 2 

 
3. Treasury‐Related Reports 

a. Treasurer’s Report (Gina) ................................................................................................... 9 
b. World Points   ................................................................................................................... 39 
c. Credit Card Receipt Affidavit   

 
4. New Business 

a. Membership Scholarship (Jill)   ......................................................................................... 46 
b. IIMC Conference 2021 (Debbie)   ..................................................................................... 47 
c. Red Lion Conference Site Tour (Paula)   

 
5. Committee Business/Reports 

a. Audit (Diana) ................................................................................................................. none 
b. Awards (Diana) .............................................................................................................. none 
c. Budget (Shannon) ......................................................................................................... none 
d. Bylaws (Christy) ................................................................................................................. 49 
e. Conference Planning (Paula) ............................................................................................. 50 
f. Education (Shannon) ......................................................................................................... 54 
g. Education Coordinator (Debbie B) .................................................................................... 56 
h. Fundraising (Debbie J) ....................................................................................................... 61 
i. Historical (Jill) .................................................................................................................... 74 
j. Legislative (Christy) ........................................................................................................... 75 
k. Membership (Kay) ............................................................................................................. 77 
l. Newsletter (Virginia) ..................................................................................................... none 
m. Scholarship (Dee) .......................................................................................................... none 
n. Webmaster (Bobbie) ..................................................................................................... none   
o. Archives Oversight (Jill)   ................................................................................................... 87 
p. Handbook (Jill) .............................................................................................................. none 
q. AWC Legislative Committee   ........................................................................................... 89 

 
6. Other Business 

a. Email Ratifications: Proclamation, Retirement Gift, Region IX Rep (Debbie) ................. 105 
b. AWC Conference Report (Virginia) 

 
7. Good of the Order 

 
8. Next Meeting ‐ Friday, January 15, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. at Normandy Park City Hall 

Tentative Topics: 2016‐17 Budget and ratify new WSU Contract for NCI 
 

9. Adjournment
   

EC PKT Page 1 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 1 

 
WASHINGTON MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOCIATION 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, June 11, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 

Fife City Hall, Fife, WA 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Burke called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
President Debbie Burke 
President-Elect Shannon Corin 
Vice President Christy O’Flaherty 
Secretary Virginia Olsen 
Treasurer Gina Anderson 
Boardmembers Jill Boltz, Debbie Jermann, Kay Kammer, Dee Roberts, Paula Swisher, Bobbie 
Usselman 
Immediate Past President Diana Quinn 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
Immediate Past President Quinn MOVED, seconded by Boardmember Boltz, to approve the 
Executive Committee board meeting minutes for March 20, 2015.  The motion PASSED 12/0. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT: 
 
Treasurer Anderson provided a profit and loss report. She responded to questions about conference 
revenues and expenditures, financial policies, and net for the year.  
 
Boardmember Usselman MOVED, seconded by Boardmember Swisher, to approve the 
Treasurer’s report. The motion PASSED 12/0. 
 
Treasurer Anderson stated Past President Passey’s World Points were used for gift cards for 
speakers and she was able to transfer the balance of his points. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
ICMA Conference 2015: 
President Burke reported that the ICMA conference was being held September 27-30 in Seattle 
and there would be no WCMA conference this year. She said volunteers could receive a one-day 
registration to the ICMA conference if they helped out. 

 
EC PKT Page 2 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 2 

 
Secretary Olsen said the ICMA Conference Planning Conference Committee held a meeting that 
her assistant attended by telephone and the local coordinator assigned various volunteer tasks.  
President Burke stated that she would report about the volunteer opportunities and contact 
information in the WMCA newsletter. 
 
IIMC Conference 2021 Bid 
President Burke stated she received a request from “Visit Spokane” to support their bid for the 
2020 IIMC Conference which would conflict with WMCA’s 50th Annual Conference.  Some of 
the issues discussed were supporting a bid in 2021, different WMCA leadership seated in 2021, 
need to cancel our conference in March due to limited training dollars and time away from the 
office, OAMR had 50 dedicated people to pull off their IIMC conference in Portland, and the 
number of people Visit Spokane would provide to assist WMCA if they received the award. 
 
There was discussion about how the Executive Committee felt about having an IIMC conference 
in Spokane, if there would be enough volunteers in that part of the state, how to gauge interest 
from the membership.  President Burke suggested getting buy in from Eastern Washington 
regional associations since there was no eastside representation on the Executive Committee. 
 
Boardmember Boltz volunteered to draft a letter to regional associations about what the conference 
involves and if they would be willing to write letters of support and commit to helping.  
 
Discussion ensued about a timeline for the bid packet and it was noted that Visit Spokane would 
need support by March of 2016.  It was agreed there would be further follow up discussion at the 
October board meeting.  
 
Education Reports: 
This item was moved up on the agenda since Education Coordinator/Past President Ali Spietz and 
Education Committee Chair Carol Etgen were in attendance.  
 
Past President Ali Spietz explained that she and Education Committee Chair Carol Etgen met and 
divided the education duties as follows: The Education Committee Chair would be responsible for 
conference education and the logistics (locations, facility, food, etc.) for the fall academy while 
the Education Coordinator would be responsible for the academy speakers along with the NCI 
Director, Athenian Dialogue, and coordination with the NCI Director on anything related to the 
institute. 
   
President Burke asked if everyone read the revised job descriptions. 
 
Boardmember Roberts MOVED, seconded by President-Elect Corin, to accept the job descriptions 
for Education Coordinator and Education Committee Chair. The motion PASSED 12/0. 
 
Past President Spietz reported on plans for the fall academy with speaker David Rabiner and a 
topic about co-workers and working environment.  
 

 
EC PKT Page 3 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 3 

Past President Spietz spoke about fall academy locations and noted that the so-called “eastside” 
location is really a central location.  
 
Education Committee Chair Etgen recommended bringing back an eastside and westside academy 
location that will help reach the clerks in the smaller towns and better accommodate people’s 
schedules on both sides of the mountains. 
 
There was discussion about westside/eastside/central locations, having two fall academies, budget, 
speaker expenses, food, materials, and facilities.  It was noted that it is definitely more expensive 
to have two academies and we went to one academy due to the recession.  Discussion continued 
that while WMCA is in a good financial position, it might be a good time to bring back a second 
academy, especially for those clerks who live in the remote areas of the state. 
 
Vice-President O’Flaherty MOVED, seconded by Immediate Past President Quinn, to have two 
fall academy (west and east) locations in 2016. The motion PASSED 12/0. 
 
Past President Spietz spoke about the upcoming Athenian Dialogue schedule planned during the 
annual conference in 2016. There was discussion about registration and the best way to cut off 
registration after the maximum 35 attendees register.  
 
Boardmember Roberts suggested submitting a separate registration for the Athenian Dialogue and 
proof of conference registration. Boardmember O’Flaherty suggested doing a lottery so we know 
how many people would have interest anyway.  
 
President-Elect Corin stated that as a follow up, we could survey members about the Athenian 
Dialogue and find out how many wanted to attend but were not able to register before it filled up. 
Boardmember Usselman said members could be required to pay online or send in checks.  
 
It was decided that the Athenian Dialogue would be included with the cost of registration, there 
would be a box on the registration form, and the first 35 people who send in a check will be 
accepted.  It was noted that there will be a waiting list and a deadline for sending in checks.  It was 
further clarified that you can go online to register but you do not have to pay online.  
 
Past President Spietz said she would prepare something for the newsletter that includes the 
deadline for payment.  
 
Past President Spietz briefed the Executive Committee about the Northwest Clerks Institute and 
stated that it went well.  She said Director Dema Harris was concerned about registration for PD 
4 but after sending out an email that the class was in jeopardy of being cancelled, registration 
increased and the class had very good attendance.  Past President Spietz said the NCI Committee 
will be talking about the contract with WSU that is expiring at the end of this year. 
 
Past President Spietz said the education survey was included in the packet and WMCA had a great 
response with 156 members responding. She said each of the states is disseminating the data.  Past 
President Spietz stated that about half of WMCA respondents stated they will attend conference 
with cost and being out of the office as main reasons people are not able to attend.  She said there 

 
EC PKT Page 4 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 4 

is still strong interest in the academies but distance is sometimes a factor so having an academy on 
each side of the state may help with that.   
 
Past President Spietz reviewed some of the topics that were suggested by clerks at conference. She 
said there is confusion about some of the terminology used for education. The Executive 
Committee spoke about dropping the term “master academy” and using spring/fall academy to 
avoid confusion by the membership. Past President Spietz volunteered to write a newsletter article 
clarifying and explaining what these educational opportunities are. Past President Spietz asked for 
input on speakers and topics and several suggestions were provided to her. 
 
President Burke said the postcard mailing needed to go out right away so there would be enough 
time to apply for fall academy scholarships.  President Burke and President-Elect Corin 
volunteered to help Past President Spietz and coordinate with Boardmember/Webmaster Usselman 
to post information online. 
 
IACC Conference 
President Burke stated that Past President Passey was contacted to see if they could advertise their 
fall conference to our members and if WMCA wanted a booth at their conference. There was no 
interest in pursuing this opportunity. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
 
Audit Committee 
Immediate Past President Quinn referred to the written report.  
 
Awards Committee 
There was no report. 
 
Budget Committee 
President-Elect Corin said she will add an additional fall academy to the 2016-17 budget to 
accommodate east and west side locations. 
 
Bylaws Committee 
Boardmember O’Flaherty said there are no proposed bylaws amendments.  
 
Conference Planning Committee 
Boardmember Swisher reported that the 2015 conference was a success. She said she met a good 
contact with the Hilton Hotel who helped with ideas for booking future conferences.  
 
Boardmember Swisher said this contact provided helpful information as she was in the process of 
sending out RFPs to find the best locations for future conferences in predetermined, rotating 
locations. She stated her goal is to find locations for 2018 through 2022 and visit all the proposed 
sites by the fall meeting.  She added that she probably will not have contracts for all the locations 
this year except for the 2018 location.  
 
There was further discussion about the host city and deciding on a process for selecting it.  

 
EC PKT Page 5 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 5 

 
Education Committee 
There was no additional report.  
 
Fundraising Committee 
Boardmember Jermann referred to the written report and spoke about fundraising ideas including 
a 50/50 raffle at fall academy and a heads and tails game to raise money at conference. She 
provided a handout regarding a t-shirt slogan contest. The Executive Committee agreed with the 
recommendations for the t-shirt contest including the winner receiving a paid registration for either 
the 2015 fall or 2016 spring academy. 
 
Boardmember Jermann said the committee recommended continuing the grand raffle, maintaining 
the prize levels and having a silent auction at the 2016 annual conference.  
 
There was discussion about a karaoke fundraiser and the pie in the face fundraiser.  Boardmember 
Jermann said the Fundraising Committee would have a more solid recommendation for 
consideration at the October board meeting. She added that the Committee will offer full zip 
sweatshirts with the bright colors again.  
 
Historical Committee 
Boardmember Boltz said there was no report.  
 
Legislative Committee 
Boardmember O’Flaherty referred to the written report.  
 
Membership Committee 
Boardmember Kammer credited Chair Elizabeth Smoot for pulling together the information in the 
packet.  
 
There was discussion about having the Membership Committee take care of the meet and greet 
event at the conference, provide an orientation about what to expect, and then take them over to 
the President’s reception and introduce them around to the Executive Committee. 
 
Newsletter Committee 
President-Elect Corin suggested a save the date section for scholarships, training opportunities, 
etc. Secretary Olsen had no report except that she had a list of potential featured clerks for the 
newsletter. 
 
It was noted that the 2016 conference dates are March 16-18 with the Spring Academy on March 
15. 
 
Scholarship Committee 
Boardmember Roberts stated that the proposed scholarship plan would be presented later via email 
due to Committee Chair Melissa Collins having a death in the family. She asked Boardmember 
Usselman to see if the scholarship application could be done online and then they will finalize the 
report.  

 
EC PKT Page 6 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 6 

 
Boardmember Swisher stated that we may need to cap the number of scholarships. It was decided 
that the decision to cap could be delayed until after the first round to see how it goes if this system 
is passed. Secretary Olsen asked that we see how many scholarships were awarded in the past year 
and compare that if a new system is implemented. 
 
Boardmember Roberts stated that a member asked the Executive Committee to reconsider the 
policy for refunding registrations for a death in the family.  There was discussion about it being so 
difficult to define immediate family, step families, grandparents who served as parents, 
bereavement policies, members who have had cancer and been denied, and WMCA being 
responsible for paying the expense regardless.   
 
It was noted that the refund policy is included on the registration form.  Further discussion ensued 
about there being empathy for the membership but with so many different circumstances, it would 
be virtually impossible to be fair to everyone. 
 
There was no consensus to reconsider the no refund policy (after the cancellation date) in order to 
stay consistent and encourage the affected member to apply for a scholarship to account for 
training funds lost. 
 
Webmaster Report  
Boardmember Usselman explained that the website provider has changed the pricing plan and 
there will be an increase in the cost of the website fees.  She added that they have not raised the 
fee in nine years.  
 
Boardmember Usselman said the Professional Plan is $100 per month and we get a 10% discount 
for paying by the year. She said this plan is going up and she recommends when the plan comes 
up for renewal in November, we switch to the Community Plan and pay by the year. This plan is 
$70/month.  
 
Boardmember Boltz asked about redesigning the website and if anyone saw a need. Secretary 
Olsen stated that she has heard from some members that the website could use a redesign. 
Boardmember Usselman stated that she would want a replacement as Webmaster when her term 
expires in March 2016.  Boardmember Boltz said perhaps the Historical Committee should 
collaborate on the website because records are moving more toward digital records. President 
Burke suggested a Communications Committee to take on the newsletter, social media and the 
website. 
 
Boardmember Boltz said she would like to look at the Webmaster and Historical Committee job 
descriptions and talk more in depth in October.  Boardmember Usselman stated we could give 
direction at the October meeting about the website payment plans. 
 
Archives Oversight Committee 
There was no report. 
Handbook Committee 
There was no report.  

 
EC PKT Page 7 of 111



DRAFT 
 

WMCA Executive Committee Meeting Minutes June 11, 2015 Page 7 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
Email Ratification 
 
Boardmember Usselman MOVED, seconded by Immediate Past President Quinn, to ratify the 
May 4 round of NCI scholarships. The motion PASSED 11/0 with Secretary Olsen abstaining (she 
was one of the scholarship applicants). 
 
Boardmember Swisher MOVED, seconded by President-Elect Corin, to ratify the May 13 decision 
to approve the $150 commuter package [in lieu of housing package] for Susan Haigh for PD I.  
The motion PASSED 12/0. 
 
President Award Presentation 
President Burke presented an award to Immediate Past President Quinn for her service as President 
as she did not do this at conference.  She said it is now noted in the task list for the President-Elect 
to present the award at the annual conference.  
 
NEXT MEETING: 
It was noted that the prescheduled October 2 board meeting conflicted with the fall academy date, 
so Boardmember Swisher stated she would check with the hotel to see if the meeting could be 
moved.  
 
Boardmember Jermann asked if the winner of the t-shirt contest get a free registration for an 
academy.  There was consensus that an academy registration be awarded.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
President Burke adjourned the meeting at 4:09 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Virginia V. Olsen, CMC, Secretary 
 

 
EC PKT Page 8 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 9 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 10 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 11 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 12 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 13 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 14 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 15 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 16 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 17 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 18 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 19 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 20 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 21 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 22 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 23 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 24 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 25 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 26 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 27 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 28 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 29 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 30 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 31 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 32 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 33 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 34 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 35 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 36 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 37 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 38 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 39 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 40 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 41 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 42 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 43 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 44 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 45 of 111



TO:  WMCA Executive Committee 

FM:  Jill Boltz, Boardmember 

DT:  October 6, 2015 

RE:  WMCA Membership Scholarships 

 

At the Archives Oversight Committee meeting, a report was given on the status of grants. The 
City of North Bonneville has a population of under 1,000 residents and was not able to use the 
grant because of staffing constraints.  It occurred to me that this missed opportunity for a small 
city is huge and my wheels began turning. 

In this particular instance, I suggested to the Archives staff that they reach out to one of the city 
representatives on the AOC when a records management related issue arises.  We discussed the 
possibility of a larger neighbouring city providing some assistance.  We did not define what the 
“assistance” might involve, but could be looked at further when/if this situation arises again. 

On a similar note, I know that most of us have had rough time in our cities, but it occurred to 
me that WMCA should have a vested interest to assist these smaller cities, when and if possible.  
I know we offer conference scholarships for training of our members, but if they cannot afford 
to be a member or do not see the benefit in being a member then the training scholarship is 
mute.  What about simply providing for “small city” membership scholarships?  We provide so 
much information through our website, newsletters and networking that this resource in itself is 
very valuable. 

I would like to respectfully suggest the Executive Committee consider a membership scholarship 
to members under 1,000 residents.  This represents approximately 80 cities and towns state 
wide. 

 
EC PKT Page 46 of 111



 

 

October __, 2015 

 

(Regional Clerk’s Association/City of Spokane/Chamber of Commerce) 

RE:  2021 IIMC Annual Conference Bid 
 
WMCA President Debbie Burke received an e-mail from Visit Spokane expressing interest and 
asking for support to host the 2021 IIMC Annual Conference.  This is a very exciting opportunity 
for Spokane and Washington State.  Not only would we share our beautiful state with delegates 
from all over the world but also provide an opportunity for our Washington State Clerks to 
experience an IIMC Annual Conference that perhaps would not otherwise be afforded. 

While 2021 may seem far beyond what any of us would plan for, the bid for 2021 will be let in 
March 2016 and will require Visit Spokane to collect all of the required information to ensure a 
viable conference. 

Why is your organization receiving this letter?  We are looking for statewide support for this 
effort.  A draft letter of support has been included along with a copy of the “General Information 
on IIMC 4-Day Conferences.”  Visit Spokane, the City of Spokane and even neighbouring cities 
will obviously shoulder a great deal of the effort to make this happen; however, we are reaching 
out to our wonderful WMCA membership for general support and consideration to share your 
time, talent and treasures as a volunteer.   

We understand this venture is six years away.  The commitment at this time is simply to share 
this information with your (regional group, elected, board members), gain support for the effort, 
prepare and return the letter of support and stay tuned on how your group can help if/when 
this bid is successful. 

Sincerely on behalf of the WMCA Executive Board, 

 

Jill A. Boltz, CMC 
Kitsap Transit Clerk of the Board & WMCA Board member 
  

 
EC PKT Page 47 of 111



 

[Insert Date] 
 
 
Scott Zellers 
Director of National Accounts 
Visit Spokane 
801 W. Riverside; Suite 301 
Spokane, WA 99201 
szellers@visitspokane.com 
 
RE:  Letter of Support for 2021 IIMC Annual Conference Bid 
 
Dear Mr. Zellers; 
 
The [insert organization name], is pleased to support Visit Spokane’s bid for the 2021 
International Institute of Municipal Clerk’s Annual Conference. 
 
 

 
EC PKT Page 48 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Jodee Schwinn 
 
COMMITTEE:  Bylaws Committee 
 
DATE:  October 1, 2015 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: Good Afternoon.  As of this time, there is nothing to report from the Bylaws 
Committee.  Thank you.  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: n/a 
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              
 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
              $               $              
              $               $              
              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 49 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 50 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 51 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 52 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 53 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Carol Etgen, MMC, with Co‐chairs Shaunna Lee‐Rice & Brenda Martinez 
 
COMMITTEE:  Education Committee 
 
DATE:  March 9, 2015 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: The Education Committee began our work in earnest fairly quickly after 
conference, by reviewing the member survey and conference evaluations.  Committee members then 
discussed potential topics and speakers.   
 
As a result, we have contracted with Albert Mensah to open the conference with an inspiring keynote 
(bringing our attitudes up in altitude!) and Stephanie Owens, who will end the conference by providing 
practical take‐home tools to WMCA members  for their very stressful work and home lives.   
 
We are blessed to have great teachers among us: Alice Attwood will teach a class for Clerk‐Treasurers; 
Ali Spietz will teach a new Clerks class; Debbie Clark, Delilah Saenz and Kathi Anderson will teach a 
public disclosure class, and Kyle Stannert will return to teach two great records management classes.  
We have taken advantage of our partnerships with our favorite associations; the Association of 
Washington Cities who will be sponsoring a class about communicating with your supervisor and 
electeds; Municipal Research Services Center Flannery Collins will take over the popular legislative 
update and hot topics class; Washington Cities Insurance Authority will be sponsoring a class on risk 
management; and and Cities Insurance Association of Washington will sponsor "Enhancing the 
Workplace Environment."   
 
Finally, Fife City Attorney Loren Combs will teach a class about ordinances & resolutions ‐ discussing 
when they're used and how to write them.  
 
We feel we've been successful at being able to offer the majority of conference participants, who will 
not be participating in the Athenian Dialogue, two good classes to choose from during the Athenian on 
Thursday.  We would like to discuss the possibility of the Board considering scheduling the Athenian 
Dialogue to a date outside of conference in the future in order to offer a wider variety of classes to all 
participants in the future. 
 
We will have our final schedule and speaker/class information ready in time for the call to conference.  
Once again, committee members will be working with the individual speakers on final arrangements for 
their classes at conference. 
 

 
EC PKT Page 54 of 111



The $4,000 speaker expense accounts for all of the direct payments to speakers for this conference.  We 
will, of course, have mileage (or airfare ‐ in some cases it's cheaper or required), meal, hotel and gift 
card expenses.  We do expect to come in right at or below our budget.  We would request the Board 
consider increasing the speaker budget in the future to broaden the opportunities of possible speakers 
in the future.  Several speakers turned us down due to our budget restrictions this year, and we feel 
blessed to have obtained the two paid speakers with the budget we have.  We would recommend a 
minimum speaker budget of $10,000 to $12,000 in the future. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:             
 
 
ALTERNATIVES:            
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $4,000 ‐ Keynote (plus breakout) and Closing Speaker 
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              
 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
4,000    $ 7,000    $ 4,000   
              $               $              
              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 55 of 111



  First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
  Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
  Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
  Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 
 
 
 
TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Ali Spietz, WMCA Education Coordinator 
 
COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
DATE: 10/5/2015 
 
 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES:  
 
As usual things are busy busy!   Below are updates on the many education areas I am working on at this 
time: 
 
2015 FALL ACADEMY 

The 2015 Fall Academy was “How to influence People and Maximize Your Effectiveness” taught by Mr. 
David Rabiner from Rabiner Resources.  Mr. Rabiner was well-received by the 58 attendees and 
evaluations indicated that the topic provided the attendees with information they can use right now and 
gave them new ideas to make their jobs easier.  Hooray for so many attendees!!!  Attached as Exhibit A 
is the evaluation summary.  The 2015 Fall Academy costs are as follows: 

Revenue/Registrations $9,625 (57x$125, 5x$150, and 1x$200, 5 no-shows) 
Expenditures  $4,975 est. (speaker fee, meals, room rental, etc) 
Net Income $4,650 est. 

 
2016 SPRING ACADEMY 

Institute Director Dema Harris, the Education Coordinators from OAMR and AAMC, and I have secured a 
speaker for the 2016 Spring Academy.  Jan Harrison from JHarrison Solutions will be doing a session on 
Time Management (title is TBA).  Her normal fee for an all-day session would be $3,000, but Dema was 
able to negotiate with her to charge only $1,850 - with a contract for all three states. In addition, WMCA 
will cover reasonable travel expenses (airfare, hotels, taxis). Parking, meals, and other extraneous, out-
of-town expenses are included in the $1850.  This academy will be held in advance of the conference on 
Tuesday, March 17. 
 
2016 ATHENIAN DIALOGUE 

I am very excited to announce that we will have an Athenian Dialogue at the 2016 Conference!   Mary 
Lynne Strata (City Clerk for Bryan, TX and former IIMC President) will facilitate the Dialogue for the book: 
Leadership the Eleanor Roosevelt Way.  Her costs will be airfare, hotel, and meal tickets for breakfast, 
lunch, and banquet on Thursday.  She is not charging a fee.  It will be held on Thursday (9:00 am to 5:00 
pm) during the conference.  The minimum number of attendees is 10, the maximum is 35 and each 
attendee is responsible for purchasing the agreed upon book and reading it in advance of the class. 
 

 
EC PKT Page 56 of 111



At the June Executive Committee meeting, we discussed how to register attendees.  Since we are not 
charging an additional fee for the Dialogue this year, we decided that a person would be secure a spot in 
the Dialogue once their conference registration fees were received by the Treasurer.  I am wondering if 
this will be unfair to the members in jurisdictions that do not allow registrations to be paid for by credit 
card.   
 
After talking with others who have done Dialogues, I would propose the following points (my comments 
are in italics): 

• A member must have their CMC or MMC to sign up for the 2016 Dialogue 
Athenian Dialogues were created in response to IIMC members who had received their MMC and 
were looking for further educational opportunities.  We have many new members who will 
benefit from the sessions we have scheduled on Thursday at the same time as the Dialogue.  I 
think we should limit this to CMCs and MMCs this year and reevaluate next year.   

• Registration will be on a first-come, first-served basis.   
I propose that we pick a date for Dialogue registration to open, that we publicize it well (with 
targeted emails to CMCs and MMCs), and have interested members email me on that day to 
secure a spot in the Dialogue.  They will then have a certain amount of time (around 2 weeks) to 
pay their conference registration fee.  Once I have confirmation that their fee has been paid, I 
will confirm with them that they have secured a spot.  If they do not pay on time, their spot 
would go to someone on the waiting list.  I know this sounds like a lot of work, but seeing as this 
is our first time and its only 35 people, I’d like to try it and see how it goes. 

• There will be no charge for a member to sign up for the 2016 Dialogue 
The direction from the President and the EC at the last meeting. I would recommend we charge 
for Dialogues in the future. 

• There will be a cutoff date one month in advance of the Dialogue for the member to cancel 
One month would be enough time for someone on the waiting list to purchase and read the book 
in advance of the Dialogue. 

• If a member cancels after the one month deadline or they do attend the dialogue, they will be 
charged a $50 fee. 
I am recommending this as there is no consequence for signing up for the Dialogue and then not 
attending.  At the last OAMR Dialogue (which was held during their conference), 35 people 
signed up and only 18 people attended.  I would like to ensure that those who sign up are 
committed to attending. 

Decisions for the EC: 
• Does the EC agree that a member must have their CMC or MMC to sign up for the 2016 

Dialogue? 
• Does the EC agree with the proposed registration process? 
• Does the EC agree with the one-month in advance cancellation date? 
• Does the EC agree with the $50 fee for cancelling after the cancellation date? 

 
NCI UPDATE 

Over the next couple of weeks, the NCI Education Committee will be reviewing and finalizing the 
contract for the Institute between WSU and WMCA (as lead agency for all three states) for 2016-2018.  
We will also be editing and refining a new agreement between WMCA, OAMR, AAMC and the Institute 
Director which lays out the following information: 

• The Institute Director’s role, responsibilities, duties and working requirements.   
• The NCI Education Committee’s membership, duties and chair duties 
• The Institute Director’s Compensation and the Institute Budget. 

 

 
EC PKT Page 57 of 111



I hope to have a draft of the agreements to the EC soon after the next NCI Education Committee 
meeting the first week of November. 
 
 
If you have any questions about any of these topics or issues or have additional direction or feedback, 
please do not hesitate to contact me.  Thank you for this opportunity to serve WMCA and our members. 

 
EC PKT Page 58 of 111



NORTHWEST CLERKS INSTITUTE & WASHINGTON MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOCIATION 
FALL 2015 ACADEMY EVALUATION SUMMARY 

 
How to Influence People and Maximize Your Effectiveness 

Friday, October 2, 2015 
Presenter: David Rabiner, Rabiner Resources 

 
50 Respondents  

(58 attended) 
 

Please evaluate the questions below according to the following scale:  
 

Question: Strongly 
Agree Agree Disagree Strongly 

Disagree 

The instructor was fully knowledgeable in the subject 49 1   

The instructor related course content to the work of the clerk 34 11 5  

I would take another course from this instructor 46 3 1  

The course provided me with information I can use right now 45 3 2  

The course gave me new ideas to make my job easier 41 6 3  

 
 
Please share any comments you have about the session. ALL are appreciated! 

• He kept us engaged with his humor.  Loved it! 
• I really enjoyed this presenter.  He was very engaging, good ideas that I can use right now, and made 

for a very enjoyable day. 
• Good location (E-burg) for academy – what about Leavenworth? One hotel option for those staying 

overnight would be nice.  Always enjoy Mr. Rabiner, information is great & love the stories! 
• Enjoyed the energy level. Stories correlated well to curriculum high points. Have new tools that will 

make not only my job better, but will enhance my life. 
• Loved Mr. Rabiner’s enthusiasm and ability to engage the group. 
• David kept me interested with his humor and facial expressions. 
• Great presenter!!!  Really enjoyed this academy. 
• The speaker was very interactive and enthusiastic.  I really enjoyed the topic. 
• This is one of the best presentations we have offered.  This vitally important to our success as Clerks. 
• Entertaining & engaging.  The information is straight forward and applicable to our daily 

work/personal life. 
• Appreciate the example of how to integrate practice into our lives to integrate the principles.  

Wonderful speaker and stories.  Thank you!!! 
• Passionate & funny – made me want to learn. 
• Anecdotal lessons easily tied into daily clerk life.  His storytelling style was a nice change from regular 

lecture style.  Great job! 
• Please, please bring him to a conference!  Funny, intelligent, just irreverent enough. 
• Best instructor yet!  Perfect blend of intelligence/humor. 
• David is great.  Sometimes speaks too fast and is hard to understand. 

 
EC PKT Page 59 of 111



• I liked this session a lot.  Was engaging and full of “relatable to clerk job” information.  Didn’t pretend 
to know job as a clerk.  Content was useable in all aspects of life.  Excellent choice for a one-day 
session.  Material will sink in. 

• More interactive projects in the afternoon might help with “food coma.” 
• David is really GREAT!  I really appreciated his insight, sense of humor and real life experiences he 

shared. 
• Wow – so great!  Thank you!  I’d say side conversations were my biggest concern, but in light of our 

training, I worked to accept that.  
• I appreciate that this programs was reinforcing positive attitudes and making us was to improve 

ourselves. 
• Thanks – very interesting, helpful material.  Instructor held my attention, kept the pace up  
• Very knowledgeable and entertaining. 
• Energetic and funny way to learn – loved it! 
• Fun – great humor.  I will take a lot back from this session. 
• Thanks 
• Fun class!  Not boring! 
• David was very easy to listen to and gave great examples.  Great skills to acquire!  Thank you! 
• Great!  Thanks! 
• Really enjoyed the course.  It was well worth the drive. 
• Perhaps the best speaker I’ve heard at any of our conferences! 
• This class gave me tools to use at work and at home.  I enjoyed this class. Thank you. 
• This is the second time I’ve attended a session from David Rabiner and I enjoyed it as much as the first.  

Great speaker. 
• He spoke too fast – hard to grasp the concepts.  Felt like he was all over the place.  I don’t feel like I 

walked away understanding what he talked about.  Although, he was funny – he should be a comedian 
 

 
Please share any ideas for topics for future sessions as well as any potential speakers you may know from 
around the state. 

• How to engage our “public” community in the processes we have (by regulation) to adopt 
plans/programs for our cities/counties/agencies, i.e. strategic plans, growth plans, budgets, etc.  
Especially using today’s social media. 

• (1) Leadership – I’d be interested in his approach; (2) How to look at the “big picture” in your agency to 
define and set goals for the clerk’s office so they help the organization as a whole; (3) How to 
transition from co-worker to manager; and (4) How to transition from manager to co-worker. 

• Can we do an Athenian Dialogue for an academy session? Or have sessions on books (Jim Collins’ 
books, First Break All the Rules or Now Discover Your Strengths by M. Buckingham) 

• Change management. 

 
EC PKT Page 60 of 111



  First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
  Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
  Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
  Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 
 
 
 
TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Debbie Jermann & Susan Ducan, Co-Chairs 
 
COMMITTEE: Fundraising 
 
DATE: September 21, 2015 
 
 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: The Grand Raffle tickets have been received and we are ready to begin 
distributing for sale at the Fall Academy. Four samples for front zip hooded jackets for pre-sale have 
been obtained for the Executive Committees review and direction to fundraising. We ask that the 
committee also be provided with pre-sale pricing. 
 
We also conducted the contest to design a T-Shirt for sale by WMCA at conference. Thirteen 
submissions were received and ranked by the WMCA Fundraising Committee. The entries and 
committee ranking are attached for your review. Also attached are color and sizing options for store 
inventory. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to the committee on pre-sale only item (front zip hooded 
sweatshirts) including sale pricing; provide direction on T-Shirt design, sizing, and color options for order 
for sale at conference.  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES:       
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $4.50 to $9.50, plus shipping, sales tax, and print setup, depending on number ordered. 
 
Revenues:    Budgeted Amount  Revenues Generated 
 
       $        $        
       $        $        
 
Expenditures:    Budgeted Amount  Amount encumbered &  
         expended 
Printing of Grand Raffle Tickets  $ 2500  $ 241.73  

 
EC PKT Page 61 of 111



       $        $        
       $        $        
 

 
EC PKT Page 62 of 111



Craig 
Atwood

Debbie 
Jermann

Michelle 
Skylstad

Jodi 
Wycoff

Dee 
Roberts

Kay 
Kammer

Erin 
Lundgren

Susan 
Duncan

Gina 
Anderson

Patricia 
Phillips

Rebecca 
Perez-
Ozuna

Susan 
Skirko-
Stewart

Terri 
Wright

Cindy 
Marbut

Melissa 
Collins

Darla 
Reese

Gretchen 
Sagen

No. 1 5 6 6 7 10 7 2 8 8 9 8 6 3 1 2 10 7
No. 2 6 9 12 8 3 6 7 3 7 11 2 3 7 9 6
No. 3 12 3 9 4 8 5 12 2 12 7 6 8 12 3
No. 4 2 7 4 1 9 6 11 3 3 4 9 11 4
No. 5 13 2 6 8 5 13 8
No. 6 1 3 3 5 2 2 2
No. 7 8 12 1 4 3
No. 8 2 9 12 13 4
No. 9 11 6 7 7 1
No. 10 10 5 10 6 6
No. 11 5 10 4 5 5
No. 12 1 11 13 1 7
No. 13 6 13 11 10 8

First 
Place 
Votes:

Second 
Place 
Votes:

Third 
Place 
Votes:

No. 1 - 1 No. 1 - 0 No. 1 - 0
No. 2 - 2 No. 2 - 1 No. 2 - 1
No. 3 - 1 No. 3 - 3 No. 3 - 1
No. 4 - 0 No. 4 - 0 No. 4 - 1
No. 5 - 1 No. 5 - 0 No. 5 - 1
No. 6 - 3 No. 6 - 3 No. 6 - 1
No. 7 - 3 No. 7 - 3 No. 7 - 1
No. 8 - 3 No. 8 - 1 No. 8 - 2
No. 9 - 1 No. 9 - 2 No. 9 - 1
No. 10 - 2 No. 10 - 0 No. 10 - 0
No. 11 - 0 No. 11 - 1 No. 11 - 0
No. 12 - 0 No. 12 - 1 No. 12 - 4
No. 13 - 0 No. 13 - 0 No. 13 - 0

 
EC PKT Page 63 of 111



 
Clerk of the Works! 

It’s what I do… it’s who I am! 
(WMCA Logo) 

 

 
EC PKT Page 64 of 111



 
Top Photo Submission No. 2; “Clerks Rock” is No. 3; last submission is No. 4 
 

 
 

 
EC PKT Page 65 of 111



 
 
 
 
 
 

DON’T WORRY 
 

WE CAN HANDLE IT 
 

 

 
EC PKT Page 66 of 111



Washington Municipal Clerks Association 

Above and Beyond the 

Ordinary 

w 

m 

c a 

 
EC PKT Page 67 of 111



 
 

 
EC PKT Page 68 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 69 of 111



No. 9:  

I’m the Clerk, what’s your superpower? 

No. 10: 

When the Clerks away, the Mayor will stray! 

No. 11: 

Clerks are quite easy to get along with, once you learn to worship them! 

No. 12: 

Clerk’s don’t have anything on their minds, IT’S ALL ON THEIR DESKS! 

No. 13: 

I’m not bossy! I have skills…LEADERSHIP SKILLS! 

 
 

 
EC PKT Page 70 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 71 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 72 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 73 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Jill Boltz, Chair 
 
COMMITTEE:  Historical Committee 
 
DATE:  October 6, 2015 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES:  A welcome e‐mail was sent out to the members outlining tasks for this year 
including finish scanning Quill newsletters for transfer to State Archives, review Historical Committee 
Description for any redundancies in documents posted to the website vs. saving paper copies, setting a 
timeline for photographer proposals, and discussion the committee task of taking pictures at WMCA 
trainings.  I had one member note that we have too many pictures of the same people.  My response is 
that we have tried to do a call for pictures from attendees with little or no luck.  Any suggestions on how 
to get more active participation/sharing would be appreciated. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:             
 
 
ALTERNATIVES:            
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:            
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              
 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
              $               $              
              $               $              
              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 74 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Sandy Paul, Chair 
 
COMMITTEE:  Legislative Committee 
 
DATE:  September 28, 2015 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES:    The budget, a budget, was finally passed following the longest legislative 
session in history.  It must be the season for setting records ‐ like the long, hot, dry summer.  There was 
something for all to love and to hate.  Other legislative activity was very quiet over the summer, and  
those on the AWC Legislative Committee are beginning to gather ideas for the 2016 legislative agenda.  
Stand by . . . . . . 
 
Cities have been contacted by the State's Auditor's Office about public disclosure.  A survey will be 
emailed 'in the fall' for the appropriate representatives at cities (clerks, city administrators, city 
attorneys) to comment on public records requests and if costs are recovered, what that looks like.  
Stand by, and be on the lookout for your opoportunity to respond.    
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: n/a 
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              
 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
              $               $              
              $               $              

 
EC PKT Page 75 of 111



              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 76 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Meeting) 
 Second Quarter Report (October Meeting) 

 Third Quarter Report (January Meeting) 
 Year End Report (March Meeting) 

 
 

Page 1 of 4  WMCA Second Quarter Report, Membership Committee 

 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Elizabeth M. Adkisson Smoot, Chair 
  Darla Reese, Co-Chair 
 
DATE: October 6, 2015 
 
 
 
2015-16 MEMBERSHIP UPDATE: 
 
We have a total of THIRTY THREE (33) new WMCA members: 
 
Kami Albers Chelan County Kathy Horton City of Milton 
Chelsea Anthony City of Montesano Beth Johnson Wahkiakum County 
Bernie Bacon City of Camas Tami Justice City of Rainier 
Carlye Baity Chelan County Sandy Kenworthy City of Pasco 
Louise Bartol Valley Regional Fire 

Authority 
Pam Keyes City of Entiat 

Meri Jane Bohn City of Black Diamond Amber Long City of Port Townsend 
Stephani Bowden Town of Coulee Dam Tulika Makharia City of Puyallup 
Sara Broderius Vera Water and Power Jennifer Marshall City of Federal Way 
Judy Brown City of Bridgeport Anabel Martinez City of Mattawa 
Pamela D. Brown City of Lynden Linda Medley Pierce County Council 
Jazmin Calvario City of Mattawa Robin Newcomb City of Mattawa 
Chris Chau City of Renton Greg Pike City of Royal City 
Kaylee Cody City of Longview Kathy Pugh City of Lake Stevens 
Susan Driver City of Entiat Kym Smith City of North Bend 
Tina Evenson City of George Erika Sullivan City of Puyallup 
Susan Haigh City of Bonney Lake Kyle Welty City of Fife 
Sunita Hall City of Medina   

 
As of October 1, 2015, the Washington Municipal Clerks Association is comprised of  
326 members; 314 active members, 1 affiliate member, 3 associate members, and 
8 honorary members. 
 
 
WELCOMING SUB-COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 
As stated above, the Welcoming Sub-Committee has welcomed thirty-three new 
members to WMCA since mid-March 2015!  In addition to the Membership Committee 
Chair sending out the official new member packet, welcome letter, and noticing new 

 
EC PKT Page 77 of 111



 

Page 2 of 4  WMCA Second Quarter Report, Membership Committee 

members in the newsletter, the sub-committee has been brainstorming additional ways 
to keep in contact with new members through their first year of membership.  Ideas 
include featuring a new member in the newsletter, checking in with the new clerks once 
a quarter to see how they are doing/have any questions, and putting them in direct 
contact with regional clerks associations.  The sub-committee will continue discussions 
and hopes to begin some of these new features in the next six months.   
 
Many thanks to the Welcoming Sub-Committee: Jill Boltz, Peri Galucci, and 
Scott Passey!! 
 
 
WMCA FALL ACADEMY NEW MEMBERS/FIRST TIME ATTENDEES 
 
There were six (6) ‘New Members/First Time Attendees’ at the 2015 WMCA Fall 
Academy.  The Membership Committee began a mini-version of the conference buddies 
concept (from the annual conference):  the Membership Committee Chair (Elizabeth 
Smoot) contacted the new members/first time attendees prior to the academy session to 
welcome them and offer to answer any questions.  In addition, members of the WMCA 
Executive Committee and Membership Committee who were attending the session 
were provided the names of the new members/first time attendees, and encouraged to 
seek them out at the training session. 
 
The continuing goal is to look into additional first time attendees events for fall academy; 
including: 

 Continue/expand upon the ‘mini-version’ of conference buddies for those who are 
first attending a Fall Academy;  

 Host a full membership event at the hotel the night before academy for those 
staying overnight (budget - TBD). 

 Mini-academy survival kit (budget - TBD); and 
 Registration form/page – in order to determine who may be a ‘First Time 

Attendee’ at the Fall Conference, the registration form/page will need to call this 
out specifically (box to check/etc). 

 
Any additional feedback/direction in this regard from the Executive Committee is 
welcome! 
 
 
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM SUB-COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 
The Partnership Program Sub-Committee, comprised of: Membership Committee 
Co-Chair Darla Reese, Keri MacDonald, Trisha Summers, and Megan Gregor, has 
been hard at work!  Their main mission is to focus on promoting and facilitating the 
WMCA Partnership Program, utilizing the partnering criteria to find the best matches 
possible.  The sub-committee has received requests from three clerks looking for 
partners, has been able to match up two with mentors, and is currently working on 
matching the third. 
 Jennifer Veneklasen (Port Angeles) partnered with Karen Kuznek-Reese (Sequim). 
 Beth Johnson (Wahkiakum County) partnered with Dayna Prewitt (Douglas County). 

 
EC PKT Page 78 of 111



 

Page 3 of 4  WMCA Second Quarter Report, Membership Committee 

 Bernie Bacon (Camas) partnership pending. 
 
The Sub-Committee will be continuing to work on Partnership Program requests as 
received; and will be looking into the Program description for potential edits/updates to 
bring forward to the Executive Committee in the future. 
 
Thank you to our Partnership Program participants; and a HUGE thank you to Darla, 
Keri, Trisha, and Megan!!! 
 
 
RECRUITMENT SUB-COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 
The Recruitment Sub-Committee, comprised of: Membership Committee Co-Chair 
Darla Reese, Cindy Marbut, and Trisha Summers, has started an effort to actively 
recruit new members to WMCA, by contacting Cities, Towns, Counties, and other 
qualifying entities, who are not yet members – an enormous undertaking! 
 
Invitations have been sent out to 192 clerks/assistant clerks/administrative positions in 
Cities and Towns; and 23 County Clerks.  A total of 215 invitations were sent out to join 
WMCA along with information on Fall Academy (including a registration form).  Results 
of this effort have ended up with FIVE new WMCA members and ONE renewal 
member; and TWO of these new members will be attending fall academy! 
 
The Sub-Committee will be analyzing feedback received from their recruitment effort; 
and look into preparing a Recruitment Sub-Committee description to bring forward to 
the Executive Committee for their consideration. 
 
Thank you very much to Darla, Cindy, and Trisha!!! 
 
 
ELECTIONS SUB-COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 
The Elections Sub-Committee, comprised of Elections Officer Leana Johnson, and 
Elections Officer Assistant Ali Spietz, is off and running with preparations for the 2016 
General Election!  The 2016 General Elections Call for Candidates will be published in 
the October, November, and December WMCA Newsletters; with candidate 
submissions due no later than December 31, 2015.  The 2016 General Election will be 
held from January 29, through February 19, 2016, through electronic voting software.   
 
In addition, Leana and Ali have been reviewing the Election Procedures, in order to 
update the document with current procedures, and propose additional edits based on a 
desire to make the process completely paperless.  
 
A red-lined version (Exhibit A to this memo) of the Election Procedures is presented for 
the Executive Committee’s consideration.  Sections were renumbered, reordered, and 
combined to provide consistency and clarity.  Substantive changes are highlighted in 
yellow and explained below: 
 

 
EC PKT Page 79 of 111



 

Page 4 of 4  WMCA Second Quarter Report, Membership Committee 

Section B: Moved the Definitions section out as it pertaining to the whole document 
not just Section A. 

 
Section C:  

2. Changed the Candidate Packets Exhibit to Section E rather than having it as 
an exhibit. 

 
6 & 7. Edited and added text to revise the process for the slate of candidates being 

announced and posted to the website.  With the last round of elections, the 
candidates were posted to the website as they were received.  This revised 
process will update the EC at the same time or slightly before the general 
membership is notified of the candidates. We feel that posting candidate 
information as it is received does not encourage people to run for and, in fact, 
may be a deterrent.  We recommend that the candidate information be posted 
to the website all at once after the call for candidates is closed. Does the EC 
agree?     

 
Section D:  

2. Revised for clarity of process of obtaining a comprehensive list of members 
eligible to vote. 

 
7. Revised to clarify the process for write-in candidates on the ballot. 
 
11-14. Revised to create a process for notifying the candidates and the membership 

of the election results.  The last election had no one running opposed, so it 
was assumed that all the candidates were elected.  However, the results of 
the 2014-2015 election were not announced by the President after the 
candidates were notified.  The notification was the audit report on the 
election.  We recommend that the announcement by the President should 
contain the names and votes counts for ALL candidates for EACH position. 
Does the EC agree? 

 
Section E: Created a new section with Candidate Packet details from the exhibit and 

renumbered for consistency. 
 

1. Revised to mirror Memebership Committee description. 
 

2. We recommend that we move to a paperless process, by removing the 
requirement that the Declaration of Candidacy and the Letter of Support must 
be mailed in and received in hard copy form.  Most everyone has scanning 
capabilites and those that don’t can still mail the packet into the Elections 
Officer.  Does the EC agree? 

 
ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve proposed edits to the Elections Procedures. 
ALTERNATIVES: Accept some, or none, of the proposed edits. 
FISCAL IMPACT: NONE 

 
EC PKT Page 80 of 111



Exhibit A 
Elections Procedures 

(As required by the WMCA Bylaws, Article V – Elections to and Nominations for Office) 
 

A. Policy Statement 
 

Elections for the member-elected WMCA Executive Committee shall be administered in such a 
manner as to ensure openness, fairness and to encourage the broadest possible participation by 
active members. 

 
1B. Definitions 

 
a1. General Election: Annual election to fill vacant positions of the WMCA Executive 

Committee occurring from the expiration of office terms; regularly scheduled for 
February of the initiating term year. 

 
b2. Special Election: An election called to fill a position which has become vacant between 

general elections. 
 
BC. Nomination Procedures 
 

1. The Elections Officer shall confirm the positions open for election with the President.   
 
2. The Elections Officer shall place a Call for Candidates, including requirements for the 

Candidate Packet (see Section EExhibit B to the Membership Committee Description), in 
the October, November and December editions of the WMCA Newsletter for the general 
election; and the next available edition of the WMCA Newsletter for special elections. The 
Elections Officer will also work with the Webmaster to notify the membership of the Call 
for Candidates. 

 
3. Complete Candidate Packets must be received by the Elections Officer by December 31st 

for general elections; and by a day specified prior to the opening of special elections.   
 
4. In the event that there are open positions for election for which no candidate has filed by 

the deadlines stated above in Section (CB)(3), the Elections Officer shall immediately 
notify the President.  The President shall appoint an ad hoc Nominations Committee 
pursuant to Article V, Section 2 of the WMCA By-laws. 

 
5. The Elections Officer shall prepare a slate of candidates, and forward the candidate 

packets received to the Elections Auditor to ensure a “check and balance” approach to 
the Elections process. 

 
6. After review by the Elections Auditor, the Elections Officer will submit the slate of 

proposed candidates for the general election to the Membership Committee Chair who 
will provide the list and candidate packets to the Executive Committee at its January 
meeting.  For a special election, the candidate packets will be distributed the slate to the 
Executive Committee via e-mail once the Call for Candidates has closed. Only those 

 
EC PKT Page 81 of 111



candidates who meet the requirements of Article V, Section 4 of the WMCA Bylaws, shall 
be submitted.   

 
7. Once the Executive Committee has been notified of the slate of proposed candidates, the 

Elections Officer will notify the Webmaster to post the candidate statements and photos 
to the WMCA website. 

 
CD. Election Administration Procedures 
 

1. The Elections Officer obtains a list of active members in good standing as of the date of 
the general election or the special election from the Treasurer.  The Elections Officer also 
obtains a list of active members shown in the WMCA website from the Webmaster.   

 
2. The Elections Officer then compares the lists from the Treasurer and the Webmaster to 

create a master list that contains only Active Members, including theirinsure both are the 
same.  (Only “Active” members are allowed to vote.)  Active Members will need to know 
their Member ID from the WMCA website Only active Members are allowed to vote and 
will need their Member ID in order to vote so the audit of the Treasurer list and Website 
list is important. 

 
3. The Elections Officer prepares electronic voting software to include: 

 
a. Candidate Statements and Photos: The Elections Officer will format each 

submitted statement and photo in the electronic voting software.   Candidates 
will be listed in alphabetical order per each office being sought to avoid an 
appearance of favoritism. 

 
b. Electronic Voting Instructions: Shall contain at least the following: 
 

If you are an active member of the Washington Municipals Clerks Association, you 
are eligible to participate in elections. 
 
To vote, complete the electronic ballot by checking the candidate of your choice, 
or writing in the name of a candidate in the field provided. When finished, click on 
the certification button and read the certification that states, “I certify that I am 
an active member in good standing of the Washington Municipal Clerks 
Association, and am eligible to vote in the current election.” 
 
Enter your name, city, email address and date in the certification fields, and click 
on the “Submit My Vote” button. 

 
4. By the Friday before the first business day in February for general elections, and a date 

agreed upon by the Executive Committee for special elections, the Elections Officer will 
email ballot information, voting instructions, and the link to the electronic voting software 
(online) to each active member in good standing from the master list of Active Members 
list provided by the Treasurer (see Section (C)D(12) above), via the Webmaster.  The email 
shall contain the words “WMCA Ballot Information - Time Sensitive” in the subject line of 

 
EC PKT Page 82 of 111



the email.  The ballot information shall contain only the items listed above in this 
Subsection (C)(4).  

 
5. Members receiving ballot information emails will access the ballot through the electronic 

voting software and mark their ballots electronically.   
 
6. Voting must be completed no later than 4:00 pm the third Friday in February for general 

elections, and no later than 4:00 pm at the conclusion of three weeks from the opening 
of special elections. At that time the electronic voting mechanism will be disabled.  Each 
member is allowed one vote; duplicate voting will disqualify the member from voting.  If 
electronic voting is not possible, paper ballots will be available by requesting same in 
writing to the Elections Officer. 

 
7. Write-in candidates will be allowed.  If a write-in candidate is elected to any position and 

indicates a willingness to serve, the Elections Officer shall notify the candidate of the 
requirements for a letter of support from that individual’s mayor, city manager, 
city/county administrator or CEO within two weeks of the election results. If such a letter 
is not provided as required, the board or officer position shall be declared vacant by the 
Elections Officer and filled pursuant to Article IV, Section 6.A.Should a write-in candidate 
be elected a written letter of support and photo will be required within two weeks of 
certification of the election results.  If a letter of support is not presented, or if the 
candidate declines the office, the candidate garnering the next highest amount of votes 
shall be declared elected.   

 
8. In the event of a tie-vote, the winner shall be chosen by lot according to a procedure 

determined by the Executive Committee.    
 
9. On the next business day following the close of the election, the Elections Officer will run 

the required report from the electronic voting software to create the list of members who 
voted and to tally the votes. 

 
10. The Elections Officer will give the results of the election to the Elections Auditor, who will 

provide an independent review of the process and results of the election. The Elections 
Auditor will also provide a written summary of the election results (including the names 
and votes counts for all candidates for each position) to the Executive Committee, the 
Elections Officer and the Membership Committee Chair. 

11. Following written review and approval by the Elections Auditor, the Elections Officer shall 
arrange for the election results to be published on the WMCA website or another WMCA 
general publication distributed or accessible to all members.   

 
1211. The President shall inform each candidate of the results of the election.  If a write-in 

candidate is elected to any position and indicates a willingness to serve, the Elections 
Officer shall notify the candidate of the requirements for a letter of support from that 
individual’s mayor, city manager, city/county administrator or CEO within two weeks of 
the election results. If such a letter is not provided as required, the board or officer 
position shall be declared vacant by the Elections Officer and filled pursuant to Article IV, 
Section 6.A.   

 

 
EC PKT Page 83 of 111



1412. The President will announce the election results to the general membership via email as 
soon as possible, but only after all of the candidates have been notified. The 
announcement shall contain the names and votes counts for all candidates for each 
position. 

 
13. Immediately following the announcement by the President, the Elections Officer will 

arrange for the election results to be published: 
a. On the WMCA website; and 
b. In the next WMCA newsletter.  
For general elections, the President will announce the election results to the general 
membership at the annual meeting in March, and the Elections Officer will arrange for 
the election results to be published in the April edition of the Executive Committee 
Monthly Report. For special elections, the President will announce the election results to 
the general membership via email as soon as available; and the Elections Officer will 
arrange for the election results to be published in the Executive Committee Monthly 
Report edition immediately following the announcement by the President.  

 
1314. Any concerns about the electoral process should be referred to the President for 

consideration by the Executive Committee and possible referral to the Membership 
Committee the following year. 

 
E. Candidate Packets 

(As required by the WMCA Bylaws, Article V – Elections to and Nominations for Office) 
 
A1. Pursuant to Article V, Section 4 of the WMCA Bylaws, Ccandidate Ppackets must be 

received by the Elections Officer by December 31 for annual general elections, and the 
date determined by the President and Elections Officer for a special electionday prior to 
the opening of elections to fill a vacancy; and must include the four following pieces of 
information:  

 
1a. Declaration of Candidacy: This is a signed, written document containing the 

following:  
 

“I declare myself as a candidate for the office of ____________________.  I 
declare that I am an active WMCA member in good standing.  I request that my 
name be printed on the official ballot for election.  Attached is a letter of support 
from my (mayor, city manager, city/county administrator or CEO), with a photo 
and candidate statement which I authorize for use in the election process.” 

 
2b. Candidate Statement: This statement must be no more than 200 words in length, 

including the candidate’s name, title, place of employment and a statement of 
why election to office is sought and must be submitted with the Candidate Packet.  
All words of more than one letter, all groups of numbers, and abbreviations or 
acronyms will be counted as one word. 

 
3c. Photo: A (2” x 2”) black and white or color digital photo of the candidate must be 

submitted with the Candidate Packet.  Photos will be forwarded to the Elections 
Officer for use in the electronic voting mechanism and to the President-Elect to 

 
EC PKT Page 84 of 111



forward to the Board member responsible for the April edition of the Executive 
Committee Monthly Report to introduce the new Executive Committee. 

 
4d. Letter of Support: A letter addressed to WMCA and signed by the candidate’s 

mayor, city manager, city/county administrator or CEO supporting the candidacy, 
and the candidate’s increased involvement in WMCA, must be submitted with the 
Candidate Packet. 

 
B2. With the exception of the Declaration of Candidacy and Letter of Support, tThe candidate 

packet may be submitted this material to the Elections Officer electronically or by hard 
copy. 

 
F. Election Timeline 

 
Action General Election Special Election 
Call for Candidates – publication in the 
WMCA Newsletter 

October, November, 
December editions 

Ensuing edition 

Candidate Packet Deadline December 31st A date determined prior 
to election opening date 

Slate of Candidates and Candidate 
Packets to Executive Committee (via 
Membership Committee Chairperson) 

Emailed after Call for Candidates closure 
dateJanuary Executive Committee Meeting 
Emailed after Call for Candidates closure date 

Webmaster posts Candidate 
Statements and Photos to WMCA 
Website 

After Executive Committee notified 

Election Officer Confirms Eligible 
Voters 

Active Members in Good Standing as of the date of 
the election 

Elections Officer Prepares Electronic 
Voting Software 

Prior to the opening of the election 

Elections Open Friday before the first 
business day in 
February 

Date agreed upon by 
Executive Committee 

Elections Close 4pm - third Friday in 
February 

4 pm at the conclusion of 
three weeks from the 
election opening date 

Elections Officer Tallies the Votes The next business day  following the close of 
election 

Elections Auditor reviews and reports 
on election results to Executive 
Committee, Elections Officer and 
Membership Committee Chair 

After results are received from Elections Officer 
 

President announces results Annual Conference in March 
Via email as soon as results are available 

Election Officer arranges to publish 
results in the WMCA Newsletter and 
WMCA website 

April edition 
Ensuing edition following Presidential 
announcement 

 
Revised: 6/2002, 6/2004, 10/2006, 12/2010, 3/2012, 10/201 

 
EC PKT Page 85 of 111



Candidate Packets 
(As required by the WMCA Bylaws, Article V – Elections to and Nominations for Office) 

 
A. Candidate Packets must be received by the Elections Officer by December 31 for annual elections, 

and the day prior to the opening of elections to fill a vacancy; and must include the four following 
pieces of information:  

 
1. Declaration of Candidacy: This is a signed, written document containing the following:  
 

“I declare myself as a candidate for the office of ____________________.  I declare that I 
am an active WMCA member in good standing.  I request that my name be printed on the 
official ballot for election.  Attached is a letter of support from my (mayor, city manager, 
city/county administrator or CEO), with a photo and candidate statement which I 
authorize for use in the election process.” 

 
2. Candidate Statement: This statement must be no more than 200 words in length, 

including the candidate’s name, title, place of employment and a statement of why 
election to office is sought and must be submitted with the Candidate Packet.  All words 
of more than one letter, all groups of numbers, and abbreviations or acronyms will be 
counted as one word. 

 
3. Photo: A (2” x 2”) black and white or color digital photo of the candidate must be 

submitted with the Candidate Packet.  Photos will be forwarded to the Elections Officer 
for use in the electronic voting mechanism and to the President-Elect to forward to the 
Board member responsible for the April edition of the Executive Committee Monthly 
Report to introduce the new Executive Committee. 

 
4. Letter of Support: A letter addressed to WMCA and signed by the candidate’s mayor, city 

manager, city/county administrator or CEO supporting the candidacy, and the candidate’s 
increased involvement in WMCA, must be submitted with the Candidate Packet. 

 
B. With the exception of the Declaration of Candidacy and Letter of Support, the candidate may 

submit this material to the Elections Officer electronically or by hard copy. 
 
 

 
EC PKT Page 86 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Jill Boltz & Jodi Stephens 
 
COMMITTEE:  Archives Oversight Committee 
 
DATE:  09/30/2015 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: The Archives Oversight Committee had not met since September 2014.   
 
The budget and revenue are relatively flat and gone are the days of a healthy balance to support 
imaging grants and transfer of records to the State Archives.  The 2011‐2015 Grant Program is wrapping 
up and of the approximately 34 recipients, the City of North Bonneville with minimal staffing was not 
able to use the allocated $1,750 due to time constraints and limited resources.*See additional memo 
 
State Archives is looking at the possibility of having to take over the records maintenance, retention, 
destruction and obviously archiving for defunct small organizations such as the Life Science Discovery 
Fund ‐ due to the McCleary Decision and the WA State Charter School Commission. 
 
Vicki Dalton ‐ Spokane County Auditor is working with DNR to change the recording fees that support 
the Public Lands to a REET based fee of 3/10ths equating to approximately $50 million per year in 
revenue.  This is proposed for the 2016 Legislative Session. 
 
A temporary archive space has been identified and leased near the Olympia Airport.  Predesign for the 
State Library & Archives began last week, no permanent location has been identified and the timeline 
for funding would be an ask in the 2017 session. 
 
Peri Galluci stepped down from the AOC last year.  The Committee discussed filling the vacancy.  An e‐
mail has been sent to Peri to verifying her intent to step down permanantly.  The WMCA Board should 
look at filling the Small City representative seat.  
 
Miscelleneous: 
 
Leslie Koziara‐Turner is now working in Cheney. 
The State Archives is looking to back‐fill a position from 2010. 
Negotiating with 5 companies to provide ECM through a State Contract.  Boot camps continue to be a 
success and the next sessions are scheduled for Tumwater and Spokane. 
 
10/10 is Electronic Records Day…it's all 1's and 0's. 
October is Archives Month! 

 
EC PKT Page 87 of 111



 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: N/A  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              
 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
              $               $              
              $               $              
              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 88 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Karen Kuznek‐Reese 
 
COMMITTEE:  AWC Legislative Committee 
 
DATE:  7/2/15 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: A special meeting of the AWC Legislative Committee was held at Sea‐Tac on 
June 4, 2015. The purpose of the meeting was to brainstorm ideas on several topics. The ideas identified 
from the discussion will be shared with the AWC Board for their retreat to be held in August. The 
committee was asked to come prepared to share ideas on five questions. The areas of discussion and 
some of the responses included: 
 
1. What are the most important elements of making a city strong and keeping it that way over time? 
Low‐interest loans, affordable housing, contolling operating expenses, regular predictable funding, level 
of certainty, sense of community, meaninful community involvement, quality of life, local control, strong 
schools, strong infrastructure, alliances with tourist groups 
 
2. Which of these elements are in the greatest jeopardy? Why? 
Funding, doing less with less, infrasturcutre, maintaining and planning for the future, trust in 
government 
 
For those elements that are in the greatest jeopardy, who are partners that might help create solutions? 
Provide examples. 
Tribes, economic development council, Lakewood has a group that works with the military, 
county/regional groups to work with state politicians, local businesses, need more partnerships than in 
the past, need partnershiops with employees, ports and different cultures, schools,  
 
4. What do you hope ciites will look like in five years? How would you like cities to operate in five years? 
Still exist, Many small cities in Eastern Washington have a lack of resources, affordability, trust, 
downtowns are disappearing 
 
5. What tools and strategies are needed to become or remain a strong city, specifically in the area of 
advocacy? What AWC has done regarding a survey of candidates, weekly bulletin. Design our own 
funding source, there is a need for direct contact with legislatures, we need to be in contact with our 
Senators and Legislatures when they are not in session, use the media as an advocacy tool, say thank 
you to our delegates, invite them to various events held in the city 
 

 
EC PKT Page 89 of 111



Additionally, I attended the AWC Conference held in Wenatchee at the end of June. The membership 
voted on the AWC Statement of Policy which received a last‐minute amendment. The Flexible General 
Government Operations category states that AWC supports "Modifications to the Public Records Act 
that protect vulnerable persons or create operational efficiences". The amendment which received 
approval by a close margin was to require that the legislature be subject to the Public Records Act. This 
was a very significant statement and will be interesting to see the outcome of this amendment.  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This is provided for information only.  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES:            
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:            
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              
 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
              $               $              
              $               $              
              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 90 of 111



   First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
   Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
   Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
   Year‐End Report (Mar Mtg) 

 
 
 
TO:  WMCA President and Executive Committee 
 
FROM:  Karen Kuznek‐Reese 
 
COMMITTEE:  AWC Legislative Committee Rep 
 
DATE:  10/16/15 
 

 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: The AWC Legislative Committee met on September 21, 2015 in Seattle to 
discuss the status of 2015 issues and develop a priority list for 2016. I was unable to attend in person but 
did participate by conference call until I was disconnected!  
 
Attached is the status of the issues brought forward for 2015. Also attached are the draft Legislative 
Committee priority recommendations for 2016.  Since this is an election year, no significant changes are 
expected on many issues. AWC feels that we can be laying groundwork to make things happen in 2017. 
 
I don't hold out too much hope for any improvements to the Public Records Act anytime soon. I don't 
feel the proposed changes really provide any help to us. They only create additional work by requiring 
public agencies to prove that records are being used for commercial purposes. I also do not see a benefit 
of having an alternative dispute resolution option. That seems to create an extra step that would also be 
time consuming.  
 
Now is the time to be talking with our legislators letting them know of our needs.  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:    YES    NO 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: This is provided for information.  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES:            
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:            
 
Revenues:        Budgeted Amount    Revenues Generated 
 
              $               $              
              $               $              

 
EC PKT Page 91 of 111



 
Expenditures:        Budgeted Amount    Amount encumbered &  
                  expended 
              $               $              
              $               $              
              $               $              
 

 
EC PKT Page 92 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

1 
 

2015 Legislative Priorities 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #  Result  Lead/ 
Support/ 
Oppose/
Monitor 

Notes 

Shared Revenue ‐ Maintain the revenue sharing partnership between the state and cities and 
restore local liquor revenue. 

6052 
1517 
2156 

Passed 
Not Passed 
Not Passed 

Priority   HB 1517 was a bill to restore 
liquor revenue.  SB 6052 is 
the Operating Budget. HB 
2156 was fiscal 
sustainability bill with 
multiple issues. 

Marijuana ‐ Fund critical criminal justice needs by sharing a portion of the excise tax on 
recreational marijuana. Support an appropriately regulated medical marijuana market. 

2136  
5052 

Passed 
Passed 

Priority    

Transportation ‐ Adopt a multi-modal transportation package that addresses city needs.  5988  Passed  Priority   Budget Bill (ESSB 5988)  
Bond Bill (SSB 5989)  
Revenue Bill (ESSB 5987)  

Infrastructure ‐ Restore the state’s commitment to public infrastructure investment.  1661 
1992 
6035 

  Priority  HB 2122 Passed providing 
some ongoing flexibility on 
REET revenue. 

New Revenue ‐ Consider replacing the 1% property tax cap with an annual limit that 
accounts for inflation and population growth. 

2255    Priority  HB 2255 on property tax 
was withdrawn. 

 

2015 Other Issues 

Issue Area: Environment and Land Use 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #  Result  Lead/ 
Support/
Oppose/
Monitor 

Notes 

Mandatory deferral of impact fee payments 
We are expecting that developer interests will again propose legislation that would require 
cities that impose impact fees to provide an option for the fees to be paid at the time of 
final inspection, certificate of occupancy, or equivalent.  Cities have the option of setting up 

5923  Passed  Oppose   

 
EC PKT Page 93 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

2 
 

impact fee deferral programs now. Some have chosen to do so and have implemented 
them successfully. Other cities have tried such a program and have chosen not to continue. 
And many cities have worked with their own local builders and taken other steps to 
promote more housing construction.  AWC opposes the one‐size‐fits‐all mandate of this bill. 

Align Utility Latecomer authorities with current Street Latecomer authorities 
Allow municipalities the option of creating a utility assessment reimbursement area on its 
own initiative, without requiring the participation of a private property owner.  The 
legislation:  1) allows municipalities the same right to reimbursement as private developers; 
2) is consistent with what is currently allowed for street improvements; and 3) provides 
municipalities with an additional financing tool to address development needs and more 
equitably assign cost shares to benefitting developments versus current requirements 
which place the reimbursement burden on ‘first in’ developers.   
From City of Seattle 

5795  Passed  Support   

Water/Sewer district assumptions 
For many years water sewer districts have sought to diminish cities authority to take over a 
district as is allowed under current law.  We anticipate that the issue will come before the 
legislature again.  At the same time some cities are looking at the idea of foregoing their 
assumption authority in exchange for clarifying their ability to impose a utility tax on water 
sewer districts. AWC will be actively engaged in these conversations as they develop. 
The City of Shoreline is very interested in protecting against retroactive changes to 
assumption laws 
From AWC staff 

5048  Passed  Monitor   

Cost recovery for nuisance abatement 
Under current law it is difficult to recover costs when a city spends its own resources to 
abate a nuisance property.  The City of Spokane Valley advanced a bill in 2014 that would 
have given cities first lien authority to recover such costs.  They encountered significant 
concerns the bill and it did not advance.  Spokane Valley is interested in working with other 
interested cities to identify other potential solutions.  AWC will be supportive of this effort. 
Everett and Tacoma both indicated an interest in participating in the nuisance abatement 
discussion that was suggested by Spokane Valley. 
From City of Spokane Valley. 

5694  Not 
Passed 

Support   

Adding information about future annexation to property disclosure forms 
This legislative proposal would add an item to seller’s disclosure of real estate sales 
identifying any property that is within an area identified for future annexation by a city. The 
ultimate result would allow prospective home and property owners to be informed about 

None    Support   

 
EC PKT Page 94 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

3 
 

annexation plans prior to making a decision to purchase the property. 
From City of Pasco 
 

Toxics reduction as part of new water quality rules 
A comprehensive non‐point toxics reduction package is a major component of Governor 
Inslee’s proposed resolution to the multi‐year fight over new water quality rules. This is also 
referred to as the fish consumption issue. This proposal includes legislation to create a 
more robust system for the Department of Ecology (Ecology) to identify chemicals of 
concern that are present in the people and environment of Washington. Ecology would 
then develop “chemical action plans” to identify the sources and potential ways to address 
that pollution. AWC will be participating closely with this process, and would like to see it be 
successful. 
From AWC staff 

1472  Not 
Passed 

Support   

Vesting Rights 
Changes to the vesting rights doctrine 

5921  Not 
Passed 

Oppose  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 2015 
session. 

 

Issue Area: Personnel  

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #    Lead/ 
Support/
Oppose/
Monitor 

 

Contracted employees receiving retirement benefits,  “Retire/Re‐hire” 
Following media coverage of retirees returning to work in highly paid public positions, the 
Washington Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) reviewed the contracts between 374 
public employers and retirees working as independent contractors. Based on this review, 
DRS found 30 instances, including 11 involving cities, where retirees were working more 
hours and/or in positions not allowed. In 24 cases, DRS has billed the local government 
employer for retirement benefits received by the retiree. AWC has been working with DRS 
and impacted cities to find both legislative and non‐legislative remedies. The legislative 
ideas include: 

 Providing amnesty for employers who received bills as a result of the review 

 Allowing for exceptions to the 2008 Early Retirement Factors restrictions 

None    Lead   

 
EC PKT Page 95 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

4 
 

 Lowering the statutory interest rate below 12% 

 Allowing DRS authority to enter into settlement agreements with jurisdictions. 

 Establishing exemptions for certain types of positions, such as planners or public works 
directors. 

From AWC staff  

Opening Collective Bargaining Negotiations 
Requiring collective bargaining sessions be open to the public. 

5329  Not 
Passed 

Oppose  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 2015 

session. 

Deferred Compensation 
Mandating participation in the Washington State deferred compensation program 

5435  Not 
Passed 

 Oppose  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 2015 

session. 

 

Issue Area: Infrastructure 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #  Result  Lead/ 
Support/
Oppose/
Monitor 

 

Increase the dollar amount for Small Works Roster 
Under current law, when a project is estimated to cost $300,000 or less, public owners may 
use the Small Works Roster Contract method. This is an efficient way to get small to mid‐
size projects completed. This would increase the dollar amount from $300,000 to $500,000. 
Some contractors might oppose this increase.   
From City of Seattle 

None     
Support 

 

Increase bid limits for certain code cities 
Legislation passed in 2009, which was designed to increase bid limits for code cities, 
inadvertently lowered bid limits for code cities with populations of 20,000 or more from 
$90,000 to $65,000. This proposal would increase the limit to $125,000. This was proposed 
last session in the form of EHB 2618. Associated General Contractors was neutral on the bill 
and specialty contractors opposed the bill.  
From City of Kent 

None    Support    

Eminent Domain 
Prohibiting use of eminent domain for economic development 

5363  Not 
Passed 

Oppose  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 

 
EC PKT Page 96 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

5 
 

but was added during the 2015 
session. 

 

 

 

Issue Area: Transportation 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill # 
 

Result  Lead/ 
Support/
Oppose/
Monitor 

 

Fire truck weight limits 
Under current law, the state’s size and weight restrictions for fire trucks make it virtually 
impossible to design a fire aerial ladder truck that complies with state law and is functional 
from a fire suppression and operations perspective. Bellevue has already negotiated new 
proposed limits with WSDOT to be included in a bill for 2015. 
From City of Bellevue 

1222  Passed  Support   

 

Issue Area: Finance 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #  Result  Lead/ 
Support/
Oppose/
Monitor 

Notes 

Provide greater accountability for the Washington State Auditor's Office and due process 
protections for its audit clients 
Specifically, the bill would:   

 Create a right of appeal for audit clients prior to publication of audit findings by 
applying the Administrative Procedure Act’s rules for adjudicative hearings to the 
investigation and reporting processes of the State Auditor;  

 Remove the licensing exemption that gives immunity to CPAs employed in the public 
sector;  

 Close the loophole in the 2010 Anti‐SLAPP statute that gives the Auditor’s Office a 

2148  Not Passed  Monitor   

 
EC PKT Page 97 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

6 
 

freedom of speech defense in certain court actions;  

 Affirm for the courts the legislature’s intent to waive sovereign immunity for some 
actions of the State Auditor, with appropriate limitations and immunities for 
discretionary functions and other prerogatives as developed from time to time by state 
statute and Washington’s courts; and,  

 Expand the scope of peer review at the Auditor’s Office to include testing for 
compliance with Federal Government Auditing Standards and with the Agency’s own 
internal policies and rules.    

From Town of Yacolt 

Address the ability of municipalities to sustain international diplomacy and sister city 
programs 
Pursue legislation authorizing cities to open and maintain a bank account for which it may 
accept or request nonpublic gifts, grants, and donations from citizens and other private 
sources for use in defraying the costs of appropriate hosting of foreign dignitaries, including 
appropriate gift‐giving and reciprocal gift‐giving, and international trade hosting, 
international relations, and international missions activities. 
From City of Seattle 

None    Support   

Initiative & Referenda Fiscal Notes 
Require more fiscal impact information in voter’s pamphlet for initiatives and referenda 
with large fiscal impacts 

5715  Not Passed  Support  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

R&D Tax Incentives  1769 
5665 

Not Passed  Support  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

County Utility Tax Authority  1133  Not Passed  Monitor  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

Increasing the EMS Levy rate  1251  Not Passed  Monitor  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

State Treasurer’s Fiscal Reform proposal  6114  Not Passed  Monitor  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 

 
EC PKT Page 98 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

7 
 

but was added during the 
2015 session. 

Allowing county treasurers to keep a 1% admin fee for collecting property taxes  5677  Not Passed  Oppose  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

Allowing a county to retain all of the public safety sales tax if it begins imposing the tax 
after July 1, 2015 

5866  Not Passed  Oppose  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

 

Issue Area: General Government 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #  Result  Lead/ 
Support/ 
Oppose/
Monitor 

Notes 

Protecting confidentiality of sensitive real estate transaction documents under the Public 
Records Act (PRA) 
Current law regarding Executive Sessions under the Open Public Meetings Act (OPMA) 
protects the confidentiality of discussions of real estate matters but no such protection of 
confidential documents is recognized in the PRA. Kent is working through the Sunshine 
Committee who voted unanimously to recommend to the legislature in the 2015 session 
the following: Provide the same PRA protection for sensitive real estate transaction records 
as we do under the Open Public Meetings Act (OPMA) for Executive Session discussions. 
From City of Kent 

1431  Passed  Support   

Protecting the confidentiality of family members and guardians of children enrolled in 
parks programs 
Statutory provisions enacted by the Legislature in 2010 provide a protection against 
disclosure of the names and identities of children enrolled in local parks and recreation 
programs (RCW 42.56.230). However, that same protection does not extend to the legal 
guardians and/or immediate family of the victim. Fife is working through the Sunshine 
Committee a proposal to amend RCW 42.56.230(2). The Committee voted unanimously to 
recommend to the legislature in the 2015 session to extend the protections.  
From City of Fife 

1554  Passed  Support   

 
EC PKT Page 99 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

8 
 

Cost recovery for public records requests that are for commercial profit purposes 
In 2014, Puyallup worked with the AWC, hospital districts, counties, ports and other 
stakeholders on ESHB 1037, which would have provided local agencies with the ability to 
establish a fee recovery ordinance for covering the costs of locating, retrieving, and 
assembling documents for PRA requests related to a commercial purpose. The legislation 
died on the House floor.   
From City of Puyallup 

1086  Not 
Passed 

Support   

Cost recovery for providing public records in electronic format 
Under current law, local agencies that receive records requests involving hard‐copy paper 
materials may charge a 15‐cents‐per‐page copying charge to help offset the staff costs of 
locating, retrieving, and assembling records desired by the public. However, in the case of 
records requests that are electronic in nature and involve digital records responses, there is 
no corollary authority for local agencies to recover costs. In an increasingly modernized, 
technical, and digital age, and with more and more records requests coming via electronic 
means, this is creating a hole in the PRA.  
From City of Lake Stevens 

1684  Not 
Passed 

Support   

Alternative dispute resolution for public records disputes 
Cities have grown increasingly concerned about the litigation costs surrounding public 
records cases.  Stakeholders have talked about the need for dispute resolution options 
other than litigation.  A mediation system has been discussed and even proposed by the 
former Attorney General.  AWC will be meeting with stakeholders to discuss the possibility 
for pursuing legislation to establish an alternative dispute resolution method. 
From AWC staff 

None    Lead   

Clarify recreational immunity for trails that may also be considered part of a 
transportation corridor 
A recent Court decision determined that the City of Mercer Island did not have recreational 
immunity for activity on a trail because the trail was originally funded and part of the 
transportation corridor.  There is concern that this could set a precedent that would 
eliminate recreational immunity for any jurisdiction operating a trail that could be 
considered part of a transportation corridor opening cities up to large liability exposure. 
From City of Mercer Island 

None    Lead/ 
Partner 

 

Preserve recreational immunity when charging a moorage fee 
Currently recreational immunity only exists when no fee is charged for the usage of the 
facility.  However, there are already exceptions created by the legislature including an 
exemption for the Discover Pass fee for state parks.  Gig Harbor is seeking a similar 

1294  Not 
Passed 

Support   

 
EC PKT Page 100 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

9 
 

exemption.  The proposal would be to allow jurisdictions to retain recreational immunity 
when imposing a daily moorage fee of $20 or an annual moorage fee of $100.   
From City of Gig Harbor 

Revise the all‐payer claims database legislation that was passed in 2014 to make it more 
functional 
A Coalition of local governments, private businesses and insurers are seeking to revise the 
all‐payer claims database legislation that was passed in 2014 to make it more functional.  
Under the current language in the law, it is all but impossible to actually collect the data.  
The Coalition for Health Care Cost Transparency is seeking the changes to allow the 
database to function and provide employers, medical providers, policymakers and 
consumers information about the cost of claims.  Other states have such databases and 
they can be a useful tool in helping to control health care costs.  While the All Payer Claims 
Database would be a useful tool, revised reporting requirements would likely mean that all 
self‐insured cities would have to report their data taking time and staff resources to do so. 
From AWC Staff 

5084  Passed  Support   

 

Issue Area: Public Safety ‐ Law & Justice 

Description: 
(Briefly describe issue and Include info on who brought the issue forward and brief any 
important political context) 

Bill #  Results  Lead/ 
Support/ 
Oppose/
Monitor 

Notes 

Authorize the creation of single municipal jurisdiction Regional Fire Authorities 
Currently jurisdictions may work together to establish a Regional Fire Authority (RFA).  This 
proposal would allow a single city to form an RFA within their existing city boundaries.  
From Washington Fire Chief Association and Washington State Council of Fire Fighters 

1606  Passed  Support   

Funding for Basic Law Enforcement Academy 
Support budget requests to expanding training availability for the Basic Law Enforcement 
Academy (BLEA) and construction of new dorm facilities to replace those that have been 
condemned.  The Washington Association of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs (WASPC) along with 
various cities have raised concerns about the backlog for training.  The wait times drive up 
overtime and other costs for local jurisdictions.  
From AWC Staff 

6052   Passed in 
Budget 

Support   

Local flexibility of buffer zones for marijuana businesses in lieu of the 1,000 foot limit 
currently in law 

2136  Passed  Support   

 
EC PKT Page 101 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

10 
 

Ask the Legislature to provide cities with flexibility to help site marijuana facilities where 
they might not currently be allowed.  The cumulative impact of all of the 1,000 buffer 
restrictions has severely impacted the available locations for marijuana retailers in Kirkland.  
Kirkland is seeking flexibility that would allow the City to thoughtfully create additional 
opportunities for marijuana retail locations. 
From City of Kirkland 

Decriminalize the offense of Driving While License Suspended in the 3rd Degree (DWLS3) 
and instead make it a civil infraction 
Currently DWLS3 is a misdemeanor with the offender facing additional fines and possible 
jail time.  DWLS3 is most likely the result of failure to pay traffic fines. Because the charges 
are criminal, each defendant if determined to be indigent is assigned a city‐funded public 
defender.  In many courts DWLS3 cases make up a large portion of the case load and drive 
public defense and other court costs.  By decriminalizing DWLS3, it could provide significant 
cost reductions.  However, without the criminal sanctions there is concern that there would 
be insufficient motivation to pay outstanding traffic fines. 
From City of Longview 

None    Lead   

Funding for indigent defense costs 
Develop a funding mechanism to assist in meeting increased indigent defense costs 
resulting from the State Supreme Court rule on misdemeanor caseload limits.  The new 
mandate limits public defenders to a case load of no more than 400 case per year or 300 if 
the jurisdictions uses a weighting system.  This is a concern to numerous cities and counties 
and the subject of an interim work group.  
From City of Yakima 

6052  Passed in 
Budget 

Lead  Need to address split in 
revenue between cities and 

counties. 

Clarify the Driving While License Suspended (DWLS) penalties for drivers who have 
received license suspension for failure to pay child support 
Under current law, the Department of Licensing issues a suspension notice to motorists 
who have failed to pay child support.  However, a loophole in state law when the motorist 
drives while their license is suspended.  Under state law, it is unclear if this should be a 
DWLS in the 2nd degree or 3rd degree.  Defendants are able to exploit this lack of clarity and 
escape further penalties.  WASPC, and the Washington Association of Prosecuting 
Attorneys, and the Cities of Redmond and Puyallup are all working on a clarification that 
such charges should be DWLS3. 
From City of Puyallup 

1282  Passed  Support   

Identify sustainable funding for gang prevention, intervention and suppression programs 
Insure all cities that currently provide and operate such programs are eligible for state 

6052  Passed in 
Budget 

Lead   

 
EC PKT Page 102 of 111



    Chart 1 Issues Summary Table 
 

11 
 

resources.  In the past few years, cities have worked to secure limited resources from the 
State for such activities in the form of a competitive grant program. 
From the City of Yakima 

Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (Drones) 
Regulations for government use of UAVs/Drones. 

5714  Not 
Passed 

Monitor/
Oppose 

This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

Criminal Justice Reform/Reinvestment 
Modifying sentencing laws related to property crime and other crimes.  Other legislative 
initiatives to respond to police use of deadly force and national criminal justice reform 
debate 

2270
5755 

Not 
Passed 

Monitor  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

Fireworks 
Proposal to limit local authority to regulate fireworks 

1702 
5914 

Not 
Passed 

Opposed  This issue/bill was not part of 
the original legislative agenda, 
but was added during the 

2015 session. 

 

 

 
EC PKT Page 103 of 111



DRAFT Legislative Committee Recommendations for 2016 PRIORITIES 
  

         Continue to advocate for AWC’s 2 remaining 2015 Priorities (Infrastructure funding support and 
Fiscal Sustainability tools) with the aim of: 

o   Keeping them “front and center” for discussion and possible, but unlikely action in 2016, 
and 

o   Helping to “tee them up” for serious consideration during the 2017 session 

o   Each of these issues requires some critical thinking before the 2016 session 
  Infrastructure funding ideas need to be something other than “Save the Public 

Works Trust Fund” and will evolve from: 

          Staff work being done in conjunctions with other public and private 
interests and state agencies like Commerce and Ecology,  

         Ideas and input gathered during upcoming AWC Regional Meetings and 
other around‐the‐state discussion opportunities with cities, and 

         Working both with larger and smaller cities – example of expensive 
bridge repairs in larger cities and expensive wastewater upgrades in 
smaller cities both need funding help 

  Fiscal Sustainability ideas will be generated, possibly from a re‐booted AWC Fiscal 
Futures Committee and discussions with other public and private interests 

         Take advantage of increased legislative interest in certain Public Records issues (such as cost 
recovery for public records that are for commercial profit purposes, an alternative dispute 
resolution option and use of law enforcement body camera footage) to see what progress can 
be made in 2016, or in helping to “tee them up” for serious consideration during the 2017 
session. 

         Identify and seek ways that the State or other partners can help cities address Housing 
Affordability and/or Homelessness and associated issues arising in many cities 

o   Consider using AWC’s Large City Committee as a starting point for discussions of possible 
tools and strategies 

o   Come forward with one or more ideas for the 2016 session 

o   Develop ideas for the 2017 session and beyond 

         Provide new local authority to address ways to best respond to emergencies impacting cities, 
such as Wildfires.  An example could include 

o   Authority to ban fireworks sales and displays in less than a year if certain conditions exist. 

         Look for and embrace opportunities to work on State Agency Regulatory issues facing cities, 
such as 

o   Finding a Fish Consumption Rate “fix” that works for cities 

o   Foster ways to engage State Agencies on issues of importance to cities both for solutions 
and consideration during the upcoming 2016 election cycle. 

 

 
EC PKT Page 104 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 105 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 106 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 107 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 108 of 111



 
EC PKT Page 109 of 111



PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington Municipal Clerks Association (WMCA) recognizes 
that quality education is essential for its members to provide improved local 
government services to its communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington Municipal Clerks Association wishes to express its 
sincere gratitude and respect to Pat Mason for his dedication, character, sense 
of humor,  professionalism, and for his years of distinguished service to the 
members of WMCA; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pat Mason’s years of service at WMCA conferences, providing 
legislative updates and teaching best practices on topics such as the Open 
Government Act, Public Records Act, Initiative and Referendums, bidding 
procedures, ethics, Open Public Meetings Act and through his teachings has 
provided clerks with a solid foundation in serving our citizenry. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Washington Municipal Clerks Association does hereby 
extend our eternal gratitude for the contributions of Pat Mason. 
 
WE, THE WASHINGTON MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOCIATION (WMCA) 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, do hereby proclaim  
  

PAT MASON A LIFETIME HONORARY MEMBER  
 
of the Washington Municipal Clerks Association, and we congratulate Pat 
Mason on his retirement and wish him much happiness in the future, and urge 
all clerks to join in celebrating his many years of service. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Executive Board hereunto sets their hand and 
caused the official seal of the Washington Municipal Clerks Association to be 
hereunto affixed this 29th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Debbie Burke, WMCA President 
 
Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Virginia Olsen, WMCA Secretary 

 
EC PKT Page 110 of 111



Hi V! 
Thanks again for meeting me this weekend, it was good to see you! 
 
Below is the email I am needing your clarification on for the consensus approved on this 
discussion ‐ that the $200 is just the gift and that the expense to professionally frame the 
proclamation is an additional cost not to exceed $100. 
 
Have a super week! 
 
From: Virginia Olsen [mailto:VOlsen@ci.mlt.wa.us]  
Sent: Wednesday, July 15, 2015 7:18 PM 
To: Debbie Burke; 'Paula Swisher'; 'Diana Quinn'; 'Jill Boltz'; 'Bobbie Usselman'; 'Debbie 
Jermann'; 'Kay Kammer'; Dee Roberts; 'Christy O'Flaherty'; 'Shannon Corin'; 'Gina Anderson' 
Subject: RE: FW: Pat's retirement invitation -- please pass along to others that would like to 
attend :) 
 
I think a gift is merited but I don’t know him well enough to know what to give.  Should we 
check w/MRSC to see what they recommend?  He has worked as a speaker for free (minus a gift 
card) for years.  I think it would be nice to give him a decent gift certificate for somewhere, 
perhaps $200 or other recommended amount?  I’d be happy to make a motion to that effect. 
 
V. 
 

 
EC PKT Page 111 of 111


	03 b Credit Card World Points June 2015
	04 a 2015 Memo-Small City Town Membership
	04 b 2021 Letter to Regional Organizations - IIMC Conference Support
	05 d WMCA Committee Report Form October 2015
	05 e 2591_001
	05 f WMCA Committee Report Form - October 2015
	05 g 15-16 Q2 Education Coordinator Report
	2015 Q2 Education Coordinator
	Exhibit A

	05 ha WMCA Fundraising Report 2nd Quarter October 2015
	05 hb Committee Ranking Tally
	Sheet1

	05 hc No. 1
	05 hd No. 2, 3, and 4
	05 he No. 5
	05 hf No. 6
	05 hg No. 7
	05 hh No. 8
	05 hi No. 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13
	05 hj Glidan Dry Blend Prices Colors
	05 hk Hanes 50 50 Tshirt
	05 i Historical Committee Report - Q2 2015
	05 j WMCA Q2 Committee Report
	05 ka MC 2015-16 Second Quarter Report
	05 kb Elections Procedures DRAFT 10.01.15
	A. Policy Statement

	05 o Committee Report Form - AOC Second Quarter 2015
	05 qa WMCA Report re AWC Leg Committee
	05 qb Oct 2015 update
	05 qc Oct 2015 attachment
	05 qd Oct 2015 attachment 2
	06 a ratify Region IX letter attach
	06 b ratify DRAFT Proclamation - Pat Mason



